### BY-LAWS

# OF

# FAIRWIND FARMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

# ARTICLE I

NAME AND LOCATION: The name of the corporation is Fairwind Farms Homeowners Association, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The principal office of the Association shall be at 9901 Langs Road, Baltimore, Maryland, but meetings of members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Maryland as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

### ARTICLE II

### **DEFINITIONS**

Section 1. <u>Association</u>. "Association" shall mean and refer to Fairwind Farms Homeowners Association, Inc., its successors and assigns.

Section 2. <u>Common Area</u>. "Common Area" shall mean all real property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the members of the Association. The Common Area to be owned by the Association at the time of conveyance of the first Lot shall be the land, except the Lots, as depicted on the Plat of Fairwind Farms (hereinafter defined). The Common Area includes, but is not limited to, streets, parking lots, driveways, utilities and recreation areas.

Section 3. <u>Declarant</u>. "Declarant" shall mean and refer to Universal Housing and Development Company, its successors and assigns, if such successors or assigns should acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from the Declarant for the purpose of development.

Section 4. <u>Declaration</u>. "Declaration" shall mean the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, dated November 30, 1982 by the Declarant, recorded among the Land Records of Harford County, Maryland, in Liber 1175, folio 609, and any Amendments and/or Supplements thereto.

Section 5. Lot. "Lot" shall mean and refer to all numbered subdivided parcels shown on the Plat as an area for a single family residential dwelling or similar building (whether attached or detached) and shall not include drainage and/or utility easements or public streets or Common Area.

Section 6. Plat of Fairwind Farms. "Plat of Fairwind Farms" shall mean and refer to and include the plat entitled, "Fairwind Farms - Section I", prepared by George W. Stephens, Jr. & Associates dated January 11, 1983, and recorded among the Land

Records of Harford County, Maryland, in Plat Book 47, folio 115 and to any other plats referred to in the Declaration, as defined herein.

Section 7. Property. "Property" shall mean and refer to the real property described in Exhibit A in the Declaration (hereinbefore defined), and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

### ARTICLE III

### **MEMBERSHIP**

Section 1. <u>Membership</u>. Qualification for membership and the classes of membership shall be as defined in the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration.

Section 2. Suspension of Membership. During any period in which a member shall be in default in the payment of any annual or special assessment levied by the Association, the voting rights and right to use the recreational facilities, if any, of such member may be suspended by the Board of Directors until such assessment has been paid. Such rights of a member may also be suspended, after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days, for violation of any rules and regulations established by the Board of Directors governing the use of the Common Area and facilities.

# ARTICLE IV

# BOARD OF DIRECTORS: SELECTION: TERM OFFICE:

Section 1. <u>Number</u>. As of and after the first annual meeting of members, the affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of five (5) directors, who need not be members of the Association; prior to said meeting, the affairs of the Association shall be managed by the Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2. <u>Election</u>. At the first annual meeting, the members shall elect two (2) directors for a term of one (1) year, two (2) directors for a term of two (2) years and one (1) director or a term of three (3) years; and at each annual meeting thereafter, the members shall elect one (1) director for a term of three (3) years and one (1) director for a term of three (3) years and one (1) director for a term of two (2) years.

Section 3. Removal. Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

Section 4. <u>Compensation</u>. No director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

Section 5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written consent or approval of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors.

# ARTICLE V

# MEETING OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a Sunday or a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a Sunday or a legal holiday.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the Association, or by any two directors, after not less than three (3) days' notice to each director.

Section 3. Quorum. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

#### ARTICLE VI

# NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. <u>Nomination</u>. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors and two or more members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the members, to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among members or non-members.

Section 2. <u>Election</u>. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election,

the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The votes of the Class A members and the Class B members shall be combined. The persons receiving the largest number of total votes cast shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

## ARTICLE VII

# POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. <u>Powers</u>. The Board of Directors shall have power to:
- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration;
- (c) declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and
- (d) employ a manager, an independent contractor and/or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.
- Section 2. <u>Duties</u>. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to use its best efforts to:
- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
- (c) as more fully provided in the Declaration to:
- (1) fix the amount of the monthly assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each fiscal year, and
- (2) send written notice of assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of the first day of each fiscal year during which monthly assessments shall be levied, and

- (3) to foreclose the lien against any property for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date and/or to bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same. The unpaid assessment shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of twelve per cent (12%); any judgment obtained for such delinquent assessment shall include such reasonable attorney's fee as may be fixed by the court together with the cost of the action.
- (d) issue, or to cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association;
- (f) cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate:
- (g) cause the Common Area and all other property owned by the Association to be preserved, operated and maintained in good order and repair and to establish reserves for such purposes if they deem it appropriate to do so.

### ARTICLE VIII

### COMMITTEES

Section 1. <u>Appointment</u>. The Board of Directors shall appoint such committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out the purposes of the Association.

Section 2. <u>Duties</u>. It shall be the duty of each committee to receive complaints from members on any matter involving Association functions, duties, and activities within its field of responsibility. It shall dispose of such complaints as it deems appropriate or refer them to such other committee, director or officer of the Association as is further concerned with the matter presented.

# ARTICLE IX

# MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The annual meetings of the members shall be held on the second Wednesday in May at the hour of 7:30 o'clock, p.m., or such other time as may be determined by the directors. If the day for the annual meeting of the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour of the first day following which is not a Sunday or

a legal holiday. The first annual meeting shall take place no later than one year following the date of recording of the Declaration.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the members who are entitled to vote one-fourth (1/4) of the votes of the Class A or Class B membership.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen (15) days (or such different notice period as specified for certain actions in the Declaration and/or Articles of Incorporation) before such meeting to each member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and the agenda for the business to be transacted at the meeting. Such notice shall state that if a sufficient number of members to constitute a quorum or to approve or authorize the actions set forth in the notice are not in attendance, the members present at such meeting, in person or by proxy, may by majority vote call a further meeting of the members for the same purpose. Said notice shall further state that fifteen (15) days' notice of the time, place and purpose of such further meeting shall be given by advertisement inserted in a newspaper published in the county in which is located the principal office of the Association. notice shall further state that at such further meeting the members present, in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum and by majority vote of those present, in person or by proxy, may approve or authorize the proposed action or take any other action which might have been taken at the original meeting if a sufficient number of members had been present; and the notice of such further meeting shall so state.

The presence at the meeting in Section 4. Quorum. person or by proxy of one-fourth (1/4) of the members entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present, in person or by proxy, or represented at any meeting, then, if the notice of such meeting stated that the procedure authorized by this Section 4 might be invoked, the members present at such meeting, in person or by proxy, may by majority vote call a further meeting of the members for the same purpose. Fifteen (15) days' notice of the time, place and purpose of such further meeting shall be given by advertisement inserted in a newspaper published in the county in which is located the principal office of the Association. At such further meeting, the members present, in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum and by

majority vote of those present (unless a different percentage shall be required for any specific action in the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or these By-Laws), in person or by proxy, may approve or authorize the proposed action and take any action which might have been taken at the original meeting if a sufficient number of members had been present; and the notice of such further meeting shall so state.

Section 5. <u>Proxies</u>. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his Lot.

Section 6. <u>Votes</u>. Except as provided in the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation, the votes of the Class A and Class B members shall be combined, and all decisions shall be made by majority of the total votes cast, whether in person or by proxy.

# ARTICLE X

# OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

Section 1. Enumeration of Offices. The officers of this Association shall be a president and vice-president who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors, a secretary and a treasurer and such other officers as the Board may, from time to time, by resolution create.

Section 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the members.

Section 3. <u>Term</u>. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and each shall hold office for one (1) year unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.

Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officers may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the president or the secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled in the manner prescribed for regular election. The officer elected to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

Section 7. <u>Multiple Offices</u>. The offices of secretary and treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

Section 8. <u>Duties.</u> The duties of the officers are as follows:

# President

(a) The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and at all meetings of the members; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board and the membership are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments; and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes.

# Vice-President

(b) The vice-president shall act in the place and stead of the president in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board.

# Secretary

(c) The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all paper requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association together with their addresses; and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.

# Treasurer

(d) The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors, shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association; keep proper books of account; cause an annual budget audit of the Association's books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting and deliver a copy of each to the members.

# ARTICLE XI

# BOOKS AND RECORDS

The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

### ARTICLE XII

## CORPORATE SEAL

The seal of the Association shall be circular in form with the name of the Association and "Maryland" inscribed around the outer edge, and in the center shall be inscribed "Incorporated 1983".

### ARTICLE XIII

### **AMENDMENTS**

Section 1. These By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the members, by a vote of a majority of members present (in person or by proxy) and voting, except that while there is a Class B member and if any lot is security for a mortgage or deed of trust insured by the Federal Housing Administration (F.H.A.) or the Veterans Administration (V.A.), the F.H.A. and/or the V.A., as the case may be, shall have the right to veto amendments.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

# ARTICLE XIV

## MISCELLANEOUS

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the 31st day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.

# ARTICLE XV

# Amendments Made at the Regular Annual Meeting

# January 1991

## Architectural Review Committee Guidelines

# I. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS

# A. INTRODUCTION

The objectives of these guidelines are:

To protect property values and enhance the investment of residents locating in Fairwind Farms by ensuring a well planned and well maintained community;

To create an attractive and efficient residential environment through sound land use planning and design standards;

To ensure harmonious relationships among the design elements of the community, including architecture, signage and landscaping, and:

To encourage imaginative and innovative planning which respects the environment and produces a high standard of architectural and site design.

These guidelines supplement the Fairwind Farms Covenants. Nothing in the Covenants and Guidelines shall take precedence over any applicable government agency rules or regulations. However, where the Fairwind Farms Covenants and Guidelines are more restrictive, these Covenants and Guidelines shall prevail.

## B. DEFINITIONS

"Architectural Review Committee" ("ARC") shall mean and refer to that group of persons, with certain powers and duties to control the design and construction of Structures within the Property, as described in the Covenants.

"Construction" shall mean and refer to any clearing, grubbing, grading, sediment control measures, or any other activity related to the placement of Structures, as defined below.

"Covenants" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Fairwind Farms Homeowners Association, Inc.

"Developer" shall mean and refer to any individual or legal entity purchasing any portion of the Property for the purpose of development of one or more Lots and/or Dwelling Units for resale and/or lease.

"Dwelling Unit" shall mean and refer to a Structure designed for inhabitation by one family group or by persons living together as a bona fide single househeeping unit.

"Guidelines" shall mean and refer to the Fairwind Farms Guidelines document, adopted by the Fairwind Farms Homeowners Association, Inc., and subsequent revisions thereto.

"Lot" shall mean any parcel or portion of the Property, designated as a separate parcel on any recorded Subdivision Plan.

"Owner(s)" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of equitable or beneficial title of any Lot. On questions of compliance with these Guidelines, Owners are responsible for the actions of family members, invitees, licensees, lessees and any other parties holding any possessory interest in any Dwelling Unit and/or Lot.

"Property" shall mean and refer to the real property known as Fairwind Farms Development.

"Structure" shall mean and refer to any thing or device the placement of which upon any Lot might affect the physical appearance thereof, including, by way of illustration, buildings, attachments to buildings, sheds and similar items, driveways, foundations, antennas, parking areas, trees, shrubery, paving, curbing, landscaping, signs, fences or walls. "Structure" shall also mean any excavation or fill, the volume of which exceeds tten (10) cubic yards; or any excavation, fill, ditch, diversion dam or other device which affects or alters the natural flow of surface waters upon or across any Lot or which affects or alters the flow of any water in any natural or artificial stream, wash or drainage channel upon or across any Lot.

#### C. THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Covenants provide for the review and approval of site and building plans and specifications by an "Architectural Review Committee" (ARC). The ARC is the reviewing body which ensures conformance of a developer's or owner's plans with the Covenants.

The ARC is concerned with the aesthetics, maintenance, operations, and community acceptance. The guidelines contained in this document are the basis upon

which the ARC reviews plans for site plans and architectural development in Fairwind Farms.

# D. ACTIONS REQUIRING ARC APPROVAL:

Any type of original improvement and later alterations or additions, construction or placement of a Structure (as defined above), and the use of the Fairwind Farms name in any form, must be approved in writing by the ARC before any construction or alteration is begun.

### E. APPLYING for ARC APPROVAL:

For any matter requiring review and approval by the Architectural Review Committee, two complete sets of plans, specifications and samples should be submitted to:

FAIRWIND FARMS H. A. Attn: ARC P.O. Box 847 Bel Air, MD 21014

# F. ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW CRITERIA

Every application presented to the ARC is given careful review, with special consideration of individual site requirements and preferences of the applicant. Each submission is judged on its own merits; elements which may be acceptable in one submission may not necessarily be approved for another.

Each stage of the review process will be accomplished within 45 working days. All approvals shall be in writing and are valid one year from date of issuance.

If for any reason all or any portion of an application must be disapproved, the reasons for disapproval will be clearly stated in writing. The ARC will provide clarification and guidance to assist the applicant in bringing plans into compliance with Fairwind Farms Covenants and Guidelines.

## G. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS

Two sets of all drawings and samples shall be submitted to the ARC. This process shall apply to new construction as well as to all requests for exterior alterations.

p.s. 21.25.45 200

The Submission shall include:

- \* An Accurate Site Plan showing existing conditions including all trees over 6" in diameter, and all proposed site improvements, including structures, roads and driveways, parking areas, pathways, site amenities, grading, utilities and stormwater management;
- \* Drawings showing floor plans and elevations, and describing all exterior materials, colors, and finishes;
- \* A landscape plan specifying type and placement of all plant materials and landscape construction elements such as walks, wall and fencing;
- \* A lighting plan specifying locations and types of all exterior fixtures;
- \* Location and description of temporary construction structures, equipment and materials;
- \* A statement of owner of record including address and telephonr number; and
- \* A writen request for and details of any planned variances, exceptions or waivers from any applicable governmental regulation or the Guidelines or Covenants.

# H. LETTER of DESIGN APPROVAL

Upon approval of the final submission, a Letter of Design Approval will be issued by the ARC. This approval must be obtained in writing prior to start of any construction.

### I. MODIFICATIONS

Any changes to the final plan submission must be approved in writing by the ARC.

### II. DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

# A. WAIVERS

The ARC reserves the right to waive and/or vary any of the standards and guidelines set forth herein to conform to particular site conditions or use requirements, within the limits of applicable regulations.

## B. GRADING and DRAINAGE

- 1. Grading in landscaped areas should provide smooth transitions in grade elevations. Slopes on earth berms and lawn area shall not exceed 3:1. A minimum slope of 2.5% is required for lawn area to facilitate drainage.
- 2. Storm drainage and storm water management plans shall conform with the Fairwind Farms stormwater management program, and all applicable State and County regulations.

# C. ARCHITECTURE

- 1. Chimneys: If metal flues for heating or fireplaces are used, they must be encased in appropriate housing (brick or siding) to match existing structure.
- 2. Exterior materials and colors: Proposed materials and color schemes will be reviewed by the ARC for compatibility with the existing quality of development in the community. Generally, materials which are unattractive or of poor durability (plywood-based siding, unfinished concrete block, etc.) and objectionably bright or clashing colors will be rejected.
- 3. Outbuildings: Garages, storage buildings, decks, greenhouses, gazebos, trellises and other Structures, whether attached to the main residential structure or detached, must be compatible in design and material with the residence. Fre-fabricated metal outbuildings are not permitted. All outbuildings must be approved prior to erection or construction by the ARC.
- 4. Style: Only the original five styles of residences are permitted to be built on any Lot.

# D. MAINTENANCE

- 1. All buildings, landscaping, drives and service areas shall be maintained in a safe, clean and orderly condition at all times.
- 2. Maintenance responsibilities include, but are not limited to, lawn mowing and landscape maintenence; replacement of dead plant material; clean-up of trash and litter; snow removal; painting, and routine maintenance of all buildings and pools.
- 3. Drainageways shall be kept clean and free of obstructions.
- 4. The ARC shall be the final authority in defining acceptable levels of maintenance and in arbitrating maintenance disputes. Periodic inspections will be conducted to assure compliance with maintenance requirements. If no remedial action is taken after

adequate notice of non-compliance is given, the ARC shall utilize those remedies set forth in the Covenants.

- E. LANDSCAPING
- 1. Every effort must be made to save existing trees.
- Recommended trees:

# Shade trees

Acer rubrum, Red Maple
Acer saccharum, Sugar maple
Fraxinus americana, White Ash
Fraxinus pennsylvanica, Green Ash
Gleditsia triacanthos inermis, Thornless Honeylocust
Liqidamber styraciflua, American Sweetgum
Pyrus calleryana, Bradford Pear
Quercus coccinea, Scarlet Oak
Quercus palustris, Pin Oak
Quercus Phellos, Willow Qak
Quercus rubra, Red Oak
Tilla cordata, Littleleaf Linden

# Evergreen Trees

Ilax opaca, American Holly Pinus nigra, Austrian Pine Pinus strobus, Eastern White Pine pinus thunbergii, Japanese Black Pine Tsuga canadensis, Canadian Hemlock

### Accent Trees

Acer palmatatum, Japanese Maple
Cercis Canadensis, Eastern Redbud
Cornus spp., Dogwoods
Koelreuteria paniculata, Golden Rain Tree
Lagerstroemia indica, Crape Myrtle
Magnolia spp., Magnolias
Malus spp., Flowering Crabeapples
Prunus spp., Cherries

### F. WALLS and FENCING

- 1. All fences and walls, greater in height than 18 inches must be approved by the ARC prior to construction.
- 2. Screening and privacy fences, to 6 feet tall, may be partially or completely opaque. The recommended material for screening and privacy fences is wood, preferably cedar, redwood or pressure treated pine, stained or painted to coordinate with the house or left to weather

to a natural grey tone.

- 3. Where fencing serves as delineation or containment but screening is not necessary, split rail or horizontal board fencing may be used. This type of fence should be kept low, with a maximum height of 48 inches. If rear yard containment for children or pets is required, wire mesh may be attached to the owner's side of the fence.'
- 4. Chain link fencing is not permitted on residential Lots in Fairwind Farms.
- 5. No fencing is permitted in the front of residences.

# G. STORAGE and SCREENING

- 1. All boats and campers maintained anywhere within Fairwind Farms including residential Lots, shall be properly maintained so as not to present an eyesore and shall be currently licensed and tagged.
- 2. Boats and campers up to the size of a passenger vehicle may be stored upon any Lot currently occupied including front parking areas.

## H. ANIMALS

- 1. No animal boarding or breeding operations or facilities are permitted in Fairwind Farms.
- 2. No dogs shall be permitted on common grounds unless leashed and under the control of its owner.
- 3. The owner of any dog must take immediate steps to eliminate any defecation of their dog upon any property, common or private, within Fairwind Farms.
- 4. No feral (wild) or farm (domesticated) animals shall be permitted in Fairwind Farms.